
PC 2015‐12 (R): Meijer Rezoning Legal Descriptions 
 
PARCEL A: 
 
A PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION TEN (10), TOWNSHIP TWELVE (12) NORTH, RANGE 
FOUR (4), EAST OF THE 2ND PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, JOHNSON COUNTY, STATE OF INDIANA DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10, BEING 
A STONE FOUND PER JOHNSON COUNTY SECTION CORNER RECORD CE‐40; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 
08 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 10, BEING A LINE CONNECTING SAID STONE FOUND AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10 AND A STONE FOUND AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10 PER JOHNSON COUNTY SECTION CORNER RECORD CG‐40, A 
DISTANCE OF 579.84 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” 
OF INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2006‐023945, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 14, 2006 IN THE JOHNSON COUNTY 
RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL THE FOLLOWING SIX (6) 
COURSES: 
 

1)  EASTERLY, 167.45 FEET ALONG AN ARC TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2050.00 FEET, 
SUBTENDED BY A LONG CHORD HAVING A BEARING OF NORTH 85 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 56 
SECONDS EAST AND A LENGTH OF 167.40 FEET; 

2)  NORTH 83 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 802.40 FEET; 
3)  SOUTH 37 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 29.15 FEET; 
4)  NORTH 83 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET; 
5)  NORTH 21 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 20.94 FEET; 
6)  SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 70.50 FEET TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN SAID EXHIBIT “A”, BEING ALSO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “B” OF SAID INSTRUMENT 
NUMBER 2006‐023945; 

 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN SAID EXHIBIT “B”, SOUTH 56 
DEGREES 44 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 66.27 FEET TO A POINT STATED IN SAID 
EXHIBIT “B” AS BEING ON THE WEST RIGHT‐OF‐WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 31; THENCE ALONG THE 
PURPORTED WEST RIGHT‐OF‐WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 31 (U.S. HIGHWAY 31), SOUTH 17 DEGREES 37 
MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 422.43 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE PARCEL 
PER THE WARRANTY DEED RECORDED AUGUST 26, 1993 IN BOOK 272, PAGE 516, SAID NORTHEAST 
CORNER STATED IN SAID WARRANTY DEED AS BEING ON THE WEST RIGHT‐OF‐WAY LINE OF U.S. 
HIGHWAY 31; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE PARCEL PER SAID WARRANTY DEED, SOUTH 83 
DEGREES 07 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 516.21 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID PARCEL; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID PARCEL, SOUTH 16 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 17 
SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 341.10 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 175 
NORTH (ALSO KNOWN AS SIMON ROAD); THENCE ALONG SAID  CENTERLINE THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) 
COURSES: 
 

1)   SOUTH 82 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 859.97 FEET TO AN 
APPARENT ANGLE POINT IN SAID CENTERLINE; 



2)  NORTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 4.71 FEET TO A POINT ON 
SAID WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 10; 

THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 
MINUTES 43 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 830.62 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 
19.47 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
 
PARCEL B: 
 
A PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION TEN (10), TOWNSHIP TWELVE (12) NORTH, RANGE 
FOUR (4), EAST OF THE 2ND PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, JOHNSON COUNTY, STATE OF INDIANA DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10, BEING 
A STONE FOUND PER JOHNSON COUNTY SECTION CORNER RECORD CE‐40; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 
08 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 10, BEING A LINE CONNECTING SAID STONE FOUND AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10 AND A STONE FOUND AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10 PER JOHNSON COUNTY SECTION CORNER RECORD CG‐40, A 
DISTANCE OF 579.84 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” 
OF INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2006‐023945, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 14, 2006 IN THE JOHNSON COUNTY 
RECORDER'S OFFICE; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
SAID SECTION 10, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 830.62 FEET TO 
A POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 175 NORTH (ALSO KNOWN AS SIMON ROAD); THENCE 
ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, NORTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 175.00 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 43 SECONDS EAST, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL TO THE 
EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10, A DISTANCE OF 831.30 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN SAID EXHIBIT “A” OF INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2006‐
023945; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL, EASTERLY, 175.06 FEET ALONG AN ARC TO 
THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 2050.00 FEET, SUBTENDED BY A LONG CHORD HAVING A BEARING OF 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST AND A LENGTH OF 175.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 3.33 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND MORE COMMONLY KNOWN AS 1615‐1660 
EAST 175 NORTH, FRANKLIN, INDIANA.  
 
 
PARCEL C: 
 
A PART OF THE WEST HALF OF LOT 1 IN SIMON COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION, AN ADDITION TO THE CITY 
OF FRANKLIN, JOHNSON COUNTY, INDIANA, AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2, 2001 IN PLAT 
CABINET D, PAGES 367 A & B, AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2001‐019139, IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF  
JOHNSON COUNTY, INDIANA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, BEING A POINT 35.00 FEET NORTH OF (AS 
MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES) THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 175 NORTH (ALSO KNOWN AS 
SIMON ROAD); THENCE NORTH 16 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 1, A DISTANCE OF 305.65 FEET, TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; 
THENCE NORTH 83 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, A 
DISTANCE OF 239.71 FEET; THENCE 47.52 FEET ALONG AN ARC TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 50.00 
FEET, SUBTENDED BY A LONG CHORD HAVING A BEARING OF SOUTH 09 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 55 



SECONDS WEST AND A LENGTH OF 45.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 17 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 51 SECONDS 
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 231.78 FEET; THENCE 34.60 FEET ALONG AN ARC TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 50.00 FEET, SUBTENDED BY A LONG CHORD HAVING A BEARING OF SOUTH 37 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 
11 SECONDS EAST AND A LENGTH OF 33.91 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, SAID 
POINT BEING 35.00 FEET NORTH OF (AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES) THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY 
ROAD 175 NORTH (ALSO KNOWN AS SIMON ROAD);  THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, 
BEING A LINE 35.00 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 175 
NORTH,  SOUTH 82 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 237.69 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1.55 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
THE BEARINGS IN THIS DESCRIPTION ARE BASED UPON THE INDIANA STATE PLANE COORDINATE 
SYSTEM EAST ZONE (NAD83). 
 
 


